# CARSON TRUCKEE WATER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

Board Meeting June 10, 2014

DIRECTORS:	GUESTS:
Todd Westergard	Leo Bergin, Attorney
Karen Baggett	Lori Williams, Engineer
John Capurro	Dave Wathen, FWM
Ed James	Danielle Henderson, TRFMA
Mike Nevin	
Ron Penrose	ABSENT:
Chuck Roberts	Greg Dennis
Gwen Washburn	Ernie Schank

# 1. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM -

President Westergard called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

#### 2. PUBLIC COMMENT - None

### 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND CHECKS WRITTEN -

Director Roberts made a motion to approve the minutes for May and checks written on Bank of America #9210 - #9217 and Nevada State Bank #2500 - #2511, motion seconded by Director Nevin, motion carried.

# 4. FEDERAL WATERMASTER'S REPORT – Dave Wathen, FWM

Target at Farad for the rest of this month will be 650 CFS, 500 of this is Floristan Rate water and the remainder is fish water through the lower Truckee River. We will run out of rate water end of July. Tahoe has reached its peak. Boca is at 17736 AF of which 15000 AF is rate water. Prosser is at 10530 AF and there is a little of the Tahoe/Prosser Exchange which can be used for Floristan Rates.

- 5. Update on Virginia Street Bridge 408 Encroachment Permit See Engineer/Consultant Report
- **6.** Discuss Status of USACE Inspection, related including SWIF application & action plan See Engineer/Consultant Report

# 7. ENGINEER/CONSULTANT REPORT - Lori Williams

A complete copy of the Engineer's Report is available at the District Offices or on the CTWCD website. Below is a summary of the report.

The USACE has issued an authorization for the Virginia Street Bridge encroachment permit with specific conditions related to no equipment in the project area from November to June. The CTWCD drafted a permit for review by the USACE and also by the City of Reno. The City of Reno is expected to request some modifications to this draft permit, specifically the construction window in order to better align it with the USACE 404 Regulatory Permit work schedule which prefers that the project

continue into the high flow season in order to complete construction in a single season and not to start and stop the project multiple times which may cause more stress on the river ecosystem. The project proponents will need to have contingency plans in place for high flow events regardless of when they occur. Tri Sage will work with the City and USACE to see what might be possible to modify the permit conditions to better accommodate the project while still providing channel capacity during flow events. It should be noted that the City has other permits and issues in the process of resolution for this project and until all issues are resolved, the City will not bid the project work. It is expected that work not start until late in 2014 or it may even be delayed into 2015 depending upon permitting and final conditions.

Since the last monthly report, no further discussion with the USACE regarding the determination of "Floodwalls" versus "Channel walls" through the downtown Reno river corridor has been had.

The Status of USACE inspection issues is noted below:

- 1) Shoaling- the shoaling deposits identified by USACE have been included in the recent modeling and at the current stage are NOT impacting the 14,000cfs flow. The USACE requested sensitivity analyses have been performed and indicate that doubling the size of the shoaling deposits does NOT push the waters out of the banks in any of the four areas identified during the inspection. There is a new area of possible shoaling identified downstream of Keystone Avenue Bridge that may be the cause of 14,000cfs flows leaving the banks along Riverside Drive; this area will be surveyed( probably once river flows drop out in July) and deposits evaluated to get data for further evaluation in the model.
- 2) Flap-gates- Now that we have model water surface elevations in the downtown areas, the City of Reno will evaluate each penetration relative to the water surface elevation at 14,000cfs. Once we have the model updated and run at the reaches upstream and downstream of the downtown areas to produce water surface elevation data, the City of Reno will continue their evaluation on the storm-drain penetrations into the channel.
- 3) Vegetation- vegetation along the walls and growing from the walls was removed by the City of Reno as part of the 2013 Debris Removal Project; determination of the walls as channel walls, not floodwalls means that there is no "vegetation free zone" requirement and other than the short section that the USACE might determine to be floodwalls, vegetation will become a moot point.
- 4) Idlewild Box Culvert/Bank Erosion- the model needs to be evaluated and updated in this section; additional survey data (which will be collected in July after the River flows drop) is required as the model contains minimal cross-sections in this reach. Once the model is updated with additional survey data, it will be run to determine the impact of the box and the need for removal. It is anticipated that this box will need to be removed to reduce the erosion of the Idlewild Drive bank. USACE is awaiting evaluation results and proposed solutions for this reach.
- 5) Flood Response- It appears from the current modeling that the 14,000cfs water surface elevation is below the horizontal surface in all areas downtown except for the West Street Plaza area. There was no approved encroachment by the USACE or the CTWCD for this project including the removal of the walls and railings along this section of river. The USACE has requested that the CTWCD work with the City of Reno to propose Interim Risk Reduction Measures that can be reviewed and approved by the USACE and incorporated into the City's Flood Response Plan. It is not clear at this writing what the requirements will be relative to the placement of plywood along the railings and walls as called for in the Martis Creek Agreement now that it is apparent from the modeling that the 14,000cfs flow is below the top of wall and below the horizontal surface in all sections except the West Street Plaza.

Next steps include the evaluation and running of the model in reaches above and below the Keystone to Lake Street areas for the determination of water surface elevations. Additional survey data will be

collected, once river flows drop in late July, at the sections below the Keystone Avenue Bridge where the water leaves the channel at 14,000cfs and at the Idlewild box culvert as well as other sections where the modeling efforts may require additional sections. The modelers will analyze the box culvert and also perform sensitivity on the shoaling areas to determine if and when these areas will become problematic to the flow. The City of Reno will work to address the flap-gate needs as well as the Interim Risk Reduction Measures for the West Street Plaza. At this time it is anticipated that work will need to be done to remove deposits in the river near Keystone Avenue and to remove the box culvert at Idlewild Drive. The exact requirements of these potential projects are still under evaluation.

The semi-annual inspection is underway to identify issues and debris that should be removed during 2014 prior to the winter flows. It is anticipated that this requirement will be substantially less than the project completed in late 2013. The inspection will be completed in the next few days now that the peak run-off for the spring has passed and the report will be prepared for USACE in compliance with the Martis Creek Agreement.

# 8. Discuss and approve USGS Stream Gauging Program for 2014-2015 in the amount of \$7,000. Approve Todd's execution of Joint Funding Agreement -

Director James made a motion to approve the amount of \$7,000 to the USGS Stream Gauging Program for 2014-2015, seconded by Director Washburn; motion carried.

#### 9. Discuss Scope/Planning Follow-up

It was decided that Director Ed James of the Carson Water Sub Conservancy District would give presentation at next month's meeting.

#### 10. LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT – Leo Bergin

Nothing to report

# 11. Secretary/Treasurers Report – Gwyn Bergin

Ms. Bergin asked the Directors if they still felt a need to have the folders for each meeting or if they would prefer to have the documents that are in the folders emailed with the regular monthly information. It was decided emailing the materials is best.

#### 12. Continued Discuss of Scope/Goals for District

Nothing additional

# 13. PUBLIC COMMENT - None

# 14. BOARD COMMENTS and/or REQUEST FOR AGENDA ITEMS -

• Director Penrose - TMWA is working on drought related activities. It is anticipated that Floriston Rates will drop out by end of July and at that time they are looking at reduced production capabilities from the 2 treatment plants. They are also concerned about keeping water in the River for environmental purposes. TMWA will maintain some of their flow down to the Glendale plant to assist the community environmental and to allow TMWA to maintain the operation of the Glendale plant. TMWA is also looking to operate a lot of their wells. Also looking to add some additional well production capability. TMWA has a potential project which involves treating poor quality ground water.

TMWA is moving forward with the consolidation with Washoe County, this should be done by the end of the year.

#### 15. ADJOURNMENT -

There being no further business, President Westergard asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Director Capurro moved to adjourn, Director James, seconded said motion; motion carried.

\*\* The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday July 8, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. \*\*

Todd Westergard, President Gwyn S. Bergin, Secretary/Treasurer